ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS COW TTEE
May 8, 2003
3:35 pm

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Gary Stevens, Chair
Senat or Fred Dyson
Senator G etchen CGuess

VEMBERS ABSENT

Senat or John Cowdery, Vice Chair
Senat or Lyman Hof f man

COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 248
"An Act relating to the annual salary of the chief procurenent
officer; and providing for an effective date."

MOVED HB 248 OUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BILL NO 198
"An Act relating to recovery of civil damages by a peace officer
or firefighter; and providing for an effective date."

MOVED CSSB 198( STA) OUT OF COW TTEE

CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO 266(FIN)

"An Act relating to questioned ballots and questioned voters,
voter registration, training of election officials, preparation
of election materials, provision of election materials, forns,
and supplies for polling places, voter identification, absentee
voting, and counting ballots; and providing for an effective
date."

MOVED CSHB 266( FIN) OUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 6
Proposi ng an anendnent to the Constitution of the State of Al aska
relating to the duration of a regular session.

MOVED SJR 6 QUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BI LL NO. 211

"An Act relating to the publishing and furnishing of certain
public notices regarding regulations or rules of certain state
agencies; relating to distribution of the Al aska Admi nistrative
Code, Al aska Adm nistrative Register, and supplenents to the code

SENATE STA COW TTEE -1- May 8, 2003



or register; and providing for an effective date."
HEARD AND HELD

SENATE BI LL NO. 183
"An Act authorizing nunicipalities to provide for economc
devel opment and authorizing nunicipalities to expend revenue
collected on an areawi de or nonareawi de basis to provide for
econom c¢ devel opnent . "

MOVED CSSB 183( STA) OUT OF COW TTEE

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

HB 248 — No previous action to record.
SB 198 — No previous action to record.
HB 266 — No previous action to record.
SJR 6 - See State Affairs mnutes dated 2/11/03
SB 211 — No previous action to record.
SB 183 — See CRA minutes dated 4/30/03

W TNESS REG STER

Dan Spencer

Director, Division of Adm nistrative Services
Departnent of Adm nistration

PO Box 110200

Juneau, AK 99811-0200

PGSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 248

Brian Hove

Staff to Senat or Ral ph Seekins

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: | ntroduced SB 198

M ke Couturi er

Anchor age Police Departnent Enpl oyees Association Vice President
and Patr ol man

No address provi ded

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 198

M ke Fox
No address provi ded
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 198

W1l Aitchison

Attorney for the Anchorage Police Enpl oyees Association
No address provided

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 198

Mtch G avo

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 2- May 8, 2003



Lobbyi st and Attorney for the Anchorage Police Depart nent
No address provi ded
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 198

Laura 4 ai ser

Director Division of Elections

P. OO Box 110017

Juneau, AK 99811-0017

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 266

Sar ah Fel i x

Assi stant Attorney General, Cvil Division

Depart ment of Law

PO Box 110300

Juneau, AK 99811-0300

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Avai |l abl e for questions on HB 266

Sara Ni el sen
Staff to Representative Ral ph Sanuel s
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SIR 6

Senat or Ral ph Seeki ns

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Sponsor of SB 183

Dan Bockhor st

Local Boundary Conm ssion

Departnent of Community & Econom c Devel opnent
550 West Sevent h Avenue, Suite

Anchor age, Al aska 99501- 3510

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 183

Davi d Leone

P. O Box 71267

Fai r banks, AK 99707

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 183

Craig Tillery

Assi stant Attorney General, Environnental Section
Departnent of Law

1031 W 4" Ave, Suite 200

Anchor age, AK 99501

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 211

Robert Pierson
No address provi ded
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 211

Mar k Davi s
D rector of Banking

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 3- May 8, 2003



Departnent of Community & Econom c Devel opnent
PO Box 110800

Juneau, AK 99811-0800

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 211

Randy Ruedrich
No address provided
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 211

El i se Hsieh

Depart ment of Law

PO Box 110300

Juneau, AK 99811-0300

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Listened to testinony on SB 211

Li nda Hal |

Director, Division of Insurance

Department of Comrunity & Econom c Devel opnent
PO Box 110800

Juneau, AK 99811-0800

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 211

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
TAPE 02-03-28, SIDE A

CHAI RVAN GARY STEVENS called the Senate State Affairs Commttee
neeting to order at 3:35 pm Present were Senators Fred Dyson,
G etchen Guess and Chair Gary Stevens. Senators John Cowdery and
Lyman Hoffman arrived soon thereafter. The first order of
busi ness to cone before the commttee was HB 248.

#HB 248
HB 248- SALARY OF CH EF PROCUREMENT OFFI CER

Dan Spencer, Director of Admnistrative Services for the
Department of Adm nistration, explained that HB 248 woul d change
the salary for the chief procurenent officer to a range 24 froma
range 23 on the State of Al aska scal e.

CHAI R GARY STEVENS noted the fiscal notes reflect a net savings
to the state.

SENATOR GRETCHEN GUESS nmde a notion to nmove HB 248 and attached
fiscal notes from commttee wth individual recomendati ons.
There being no objection, it was so ordered.

#

SENATE STA COW TTEE -4- May 8, 2003



#SB 198
SB 198- DAMAGES RECOVERED BY POLI CE/ FI REFI GHTER

BRIAN HOVE, staff to Senator Ralph Seekins, read the sponsor

statenent into the record:
SB 198 revises the comon Jlaw known as the
Firefighter’s Rule. This rule precludes firefighters
and peace officers from recovering civil damges for
injuries caused by any negligent act inflicted while on
duty. The Firefighters Rule does not distinguish
between negligent acts requiring the firefighters or
peace officer’s response from negligent acts that are
unrelated to the reason the firefighter or peace
officer was required to respond.

For exanple, as currently enployed, the Firefighters
Rul e precludes a police officer from suing for damages
for injuries suffered as a result of being struck by a
drunk driver during the course of transporting a
prisoner to the courthouse. This despite the fact that
the negligent act, in this case, the drunk driving, is
unrelated to the duty the officer was performng at the
time. SB 198 corrects this incongruity. Yet, on the
other hand, this bill does nothing to change the case
where the police officer is injured during the course
of a pursuit of the drunk driver. This is considered a
foreseeable risk associated with the profession and,
accordingly, well within that which the Firefighter’s
Rul e shoul d cover.

Ther ef or e, SB 198 nmekes a distinction Dbetween
negl i gence that is related to the reason the
firefighter or peace officer is responding and
negligence that 1is wunrelated to the reason the
firefighter or peace officer is responding. In the
first instance, it does not allow a civil action.
Instead the firefighter or peace officer nust rely on
the state’s workers conpensation system However, in

the case where injury was caused by a negligent act not
related to the reason for the firefighter or peace
officer’s response, then — under this legislation — a
civil action can be brought against the at-fault party.

SENATOR JOHN CONDERY asked how many people mght be affected by
this legislation and what other states have done in this regard.

MR. HOVE didn’t have that information

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 5- May 8, 2003



SENATOR GRETCHEN GUESS asked whether the bill woul d be
retroactive.

MR. HOVE replied they had not discussed effective dates.

SENATOR FRED DYSON asked who the personal representative is for
peace officers.

CHAI R GARY STEVENS asked M ke Couturier to join M. Hove at the
tabl e.

M KE COUTURI ER, an Anchorage Patrol Oficer, expressed support
for SB 198. He said officers accept the inherent risks associated
with their profession, but need recourse for accidents and
injuries that are unrelated to the job they are perform ng. He
told a story about an officer that was critically injured by a
drunk driver while enroute to a call. Because of the Fireman's
Rul e, he was unable to recover danages incurred as a result of
that traffic accident. Peace officers and firefighters shouldn’t
have to give up their rights as citizens when they are worKking.
These are infrequent occurrences and would not cause a |large
increase in litigation across the state; the bill would sinply
take care of the exceptions.

SENATOR GUESS asked the committee to entertain two points:
« VWhether the bill should be retroactive to 2000
e« That the effective date should be i mredi at e

SENATOR JOHN CONDERY commrented that glitches in law should be
corrected.

CHAI R GARY STEVENS asked whet her insurance coverage entered into
t he di scussi on.

MR. COUTURIER advised it did to a certain extent because
t axpayers are paying for acts of neglect.

M KE FOX, retired state trooper and enployee of a Public Safety
Enpl oyee Association, testified in support of the bill

WLL AITCH SON, attorney for the Anchorage Police Enployees
Association, testified via teleconference in support of SB 198.
The Fireman’s Rule stens fromold rules regarding liability when
sonmeone is doing business on your property. It evolved to the
point that police officers and firefighters had no right to
recover froma negligent third party when injured on the job.

A nunber of state legislatures have statutorily repealed court

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 6- May 8, 2003



deci sions that adopted this type of rule on the theory that the
negl i gent wongdoer, not the public, should bear responsibility
for their conduct.

The Firefighters Rule was adopted in a case involving the
DI l'i ngham chief of police, but the Al aska Suprene Court didn't
define the confines of the rule and there are several. SB 198
adopts the Firefighters Rule statutorily, but nmakes a distinction
bet ween negligence that is related to the reason the firefighter
or peace officer is responding and negligence that is unrelated
to the reason they are respondi ng.

In response to Senator Cowdery’s question, he said these cases
have been infrequent in Alaska. Wth regard to Senator Dyson’s
guestion, he said the personal representative refers to peace
officers and firefighters who have died in the line of duty and
in those cases the personal representative would be the executor
of the estate.

CHAI R GARY STEVENS asked himto coment on the effective date and
whet her it should be retroactive to 2000.

MR. Al TCH SON said the bill is witten to be effective on July 1,
but he doesn’t see why it should be then. Also, the way he reads
the bill it would be retroactive to an existing claim

SENATOR CONDERY asked if the state would assune additional costs
with this change.

MR. Al TCH SON opined there would be a cost reduction to the
state.

CHAI R GARY STEVENS poi nted out that page 2, line 5 nmakes the | aw
applicable on or after the effective date of the act.

SENATOR CONDERY asked what is typical in other states.

MR. Al TCHI SON t hought this was the nost common form O her states
are split. Sonme have a nore intensive rule and sone have no rule
what soever.

SENATOR DYSON asked if the bill wuld allow for just the
negligent party to be sued and not a deep pocket.

MR. AITCH SON replied the bill only allows | awsuits agai nst those
who are negligent and only where the negligence is independent of
the reason that the officer or firefighter is responding.

SENATOR DYSON asked for verification that SB 198 wouldn't all ow

an injured officer or firefighter to collect twice for nedica
bills or |ost wages.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -7- May 8, 2003



MR. Al TCHI SON said there would be an obligation to pay back the
state or whoever paid the nedical bills.

SENATOR DYSON asked if pain and suffering, paynent for |oss of
future earnings and punitive damages would go directly to the
i njured worker.

MR. Al TCHI SON replied they woul d.

SENATOR DYSON asked how to nodify the bill to nake it
retroactive.

MR. Al TCH SON replied you would renove the applicability clause.

SENATOR @QUESS stated she would like to renbve Sec. 2 and make it
effective i Mmedi ately.

CHAI R GARY STEVENS asked the sponsor’s staff to respond to the
proposed change.

MR. HOVE said he had no problemw th the change.
SENATOR LYMAN HOFFMAN comment ed [i ndi scerni bl e}.

M TCH GRAVO attorney and |obbyist for the Anchorage Police
Depart ment Enpl oyees Association, testified they would support
t he anmendnent .

SENATOR GUESS nade a notion to amend the bill to renpve Sec. 2,
lines 3-6 on page 2 and nake a new Sec. 2 to nmake the effective
dat e i medi at e.

CHAIR GARY STEVENS called for a roll <call on Anmendnent 1.
Senators Hof fman, Cowdery, Dyson, Guess and Chair Gary Stevens
voted yea. Anmendnment 1 passed unopposed.

SENATOR DYSON made a notion to nove CSSB 198(STA) and attached
fiscal note fromconmttee with individual recommendations. There
bei ng no objection, it was so ordered.

#

#HB 266
HB 266- ELECTI ONS & VOTER REGQ STRATI ON

LAURA GLAI SER, director of the Division of Elections, read into
the record:
In Cctober 2002, President Bush signed the “Help
Anmerica Vote Act,” (HAVA) into law. HAVA is the result

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 8- May 8, 2003



of a bipartisan effort in Congress to nake sweeping
changes to federal election laws to inprove the overal
adm nistration of elections, increase accessibility to
those with disabilities, and also to prevent voter
fraud.

Many changes required under HAVA do not require
amendi ng Al aska statute, but HB 266 includes those
necessary to neet federal nandates. Changes reconmended
in the bill before you follow the intent of the federal
| aw and do not place unnecessary burdens on the voter
It is inperative that these changes mandat ed by federal
| aw are passed by the Legislature this year.

HB 266 al so includes changes the division recomends.
The division supports the |anguage reconmmended in
Senator Lincoln’s SB 24, and it has been included in
this bill with her perm ssion. Oher changes regarding
returning i dentification/voter cards to ot her
jurisdictions, reference to a “master list,” and addi ng
types of information that can be provided by the voter
when registering in person are requested by the
division in this bill

The House State Affairs Commttee renoved the | anguage
suggested by the division changing the term “questi oned
ballots” to “provisional ballots.” The federal |aw
refers to “provisional voting,” (which Al askans refer
to as “questioned voting”) and the division originally
reconmended changing the references in statute to
conformto the federal | anguage.

The State Affairs Commttee also restored references to
the division sending voters letters regarding the
status of their absentee, questioned, or partially
counted ballot in addition to the “free access systent
requi red i n HAVA.

The House Finance Committee substitute renoves perhaps
the nost significant change NOT nandated by the federal
act. In the first two versions of the bill the division
reconmended replacing the terns “non partisan” and
“undecl ared” with the term*“unaffiliated.” As a result,
there will be no changes to the current references to
“non partisan” and “undecl ared.”

SENATOR JOHN COADERY questioned what the difference would be for
sonmeone showi ng up at the polling booth.

M5. GLAISER replied there would be a difference for the voter

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 9- May 8, 2003



that initially registered to vote by mail and therefore didn't
have to show identification. Those voters would have to verify
their identification. The idea was to get at voter fraud and
those voters who have registered to vote in person and have
typically voted in person would see no change.

SENATOR COWNDERY asked if not passing the bill would place the
state in violation of federal | aw

M5. GLAISER said that with passage of the Capital Budget, $5
mllion federal dollars would be available to inplenment the |aw
and another $4.1 mllion would be available by the end of the
year. It’s highly likely those nonies woul d be taken back and the
state would be served if the legislation were to fail.

SENATOR CONDERY asked how t he division would spend t he noney.

M5. GLAISER replied nuch of the noney would be spent on touch
screen polling and on updates to the voter database.

SENATOR LYMAN HOFFMAN asked why the division recommended the term
“non partisan”.

M5. CGLAI SER said the regional supervisors believe nbst voters
don’t know the difference between “non partisan” and “undecl ared”
and they thought that it would help the voter to use the one term
and provide a definition.

The division defined “non partisan” as a person that doesn’'t
affiliate with a particular party while an “undecl ared” voter may
have a particular party affiliation, but they don't want to
declare that affiliation

SIDE B
4:20 pm

SENATOR CONDERY asked how “undeclared” would do in a closed
primry.

M5. GLAI SER replied they both have the sane access to the ball ot
and that is why naking them one code or term would not affect
their access to the ballot.

SENATOR HOFFMAN noted they would still have to make a sel ection
and couldn’t cross over in a primry.

MS. GLAI SER agreed that is correct under the current |aw

SENATE STA COW TTEE -10- May 8, 2003



CHAIR GARY STEVENS said the inpact to the voter would be
negligible if “unaffiliated” were selected as the term

M5. G.AISER replied that would be correct as long as the
understanding is that you are either in a party or you are
unaf fili at ed.

SENATOR HOFFMAN renarked the voters that were frustrated in the
| ast election would still be frustrated if this were to pass.

M5. GLAI SER agreed. She then noted the House passed a zero fiscal
note with the bill, which was incorrect. The correct fiscal note
is dated 4/15/03 4:16 pm and it shows $382,000 in federal
receipts. Initially the fiscal note was zero because the nonies
were to have been shown in the Capital Budget. The mnority
menbers of the House State Affairs Conmittee asked the division
to show that noney. The analysis was the same and adopting the
zero note with the bill was sinply an error.

CHAI R GARY STEVENS asked for a notion to adopt the corrected
fiscal note.

SENATOR COANDERY nade a notion to renove the fiscal note dated
4/ 11/ 03 2:53 pm and adopt the fiscal note dated 4/15/03 4:16 pm
There was no objection.

SENATOR CONDERY made a notion to nove CSHB 266(FIN) and attached
fiscal notes from commttee wth individual reconmendations.
There being no objection, it was so ordered.

#

#SJR 6
SJR 6-CONST AM 90 DAY LEG SLATI VE SESSI ON

SENATOR GRETCHEN GUESS st ated her contention that the Legislature
could do the people’s business in 90 days.

SARA NI ELSEN, Staff to Representative Ral ph Sanuels, said the
1956 m nutes show there was much debate regarding the length of a
| egi sl ative session. Initially they decided not to Ilimt
t hensel ves.

SENATOR JOHN COWDERY asked whether there was anything about the
UniformRules in the 1956 m nutes.

M5. NI ELSEN said the m nutes addressed the Uniform Rules and how

t hey woul d conduct business. She opined that if the Constitution
were changed the Uniform Rules would |ikely need to be changed as

SENATE STA COW TTEE -11- May 8, 2003



wel | .

SENATOR CONDERY commented it would take teammork to nmke this
wor k.

SENATOR FRED DYSON asked what this would do to the bal ance of
power between the |egislative and executive branches.

M5. NI ELSEN replied she has read no published articles on that
particul ar aspect of the change.

SENATOR GUESS added there is no research in the area. She opined
it wuld tip the bal ance.

SENATOR CONDERY asked what the benefit would be other than in the
peopl e’ s eyes.

SENATOR GUESS replied the ultinmate advantage is when people
believe their governnent is working better and nore efficiently.
There certainly would be a cost savings and citizen |egislators
are certainly preferable.

SENATOR COWDERY asked if the existing staff could handle a
shorter session.

SENATOR GUESS said everyone would have a different opinion on
that, but it’s likely everyone would have to do nore preparation
before arriving in Juneau.

She added this is an idea that will take thought.

SENATOR HOFFMAN stated it is his belief that a shorter session
would result in nore special sessions, which would cause nore
di srupti on.

CHAI R GARY STEVENS said he couldn’t imagine working any harder

than he is currently. He isn't in favor of the legislation and
bel i eves the public would suffer.

SENATOR COWNDERY stated he agrees with the concept, but the bil
needs nore worKk.

SENATOR DYSON made a notion to nove SJR 6 from conmmittee wth
i ndi vi dual recomendati ons.

SENATOR CONDERY obj ect ed.

CHAI R GARY STEVENS asked for a roll call vote. Senators Hoffman,

SENATE STA COW TTEE -12- May 8, 2003



Dyson and CGuess voted yea and Senator Cowdery and Chair @Gry
St evens vot ed nay.

SJR 6 noved fromcommittee.
#

#SB 183
SB 183- MUNI CI PAL _ECON. DEVELOPMENT/ TAXATI ON

SENATOR RALPH SEEKI NS, bill sponsor, paraphrased fromthe sponsor
statenent .
Current state law places a limtation on second-cl ass
boroughs with respect to expendi ng funds designated for
econoni ¢ devel opnent pur poses.

Presently, second-class boroughs nay only use these
funds on a non-areawi de basis. This nmeans the Fairbanks
North Star Borough can only deploy these funds on
projects located outside the city limts of Fairbanks
and North Pol e.

It is desirable for the borough to have the ability to
utilize economc developnent funds on an areaw de
basis. In this way, worthy projects can be funded
irrespective of their Jlocation-within, or wthout,
muni ci pal boundaries-so long as the project renains
within the greater borough boundary. Such projects wll
benefit the entire borough comunity while physical
| ocation, whether wthin city boundaries or not, is
considered inmaterial to this greater good.

This legislation is proposed at the request of the
Fai rbanks North Star Borough as well as the Cities of
Fai rbanks and North Pole. In summary, it wll
facilitate the devel opnent of economically attractive
projects throughout the entire Fairbanks North Star
Bor ough wi t hout regard to i nt ernal muni ci pa
boundari es.

SENATOR JOHN CONDERY asked why there is a prohibition

SENATOR SEEKINS didn’t know, but the borough is trying to work
around the current statute and work with the two cities.

SENATOR CONDERY asked if other states prohibit this.

SENATOR SEEKINS wasn’t aware of any, but nost states have
counties.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -13- May 8, 2003



CHAI R GARY STEVENS explained the foundation of the idea is to
avoi d duplication of powers.

SENATOR COWDERY asked if the borough had particular projects in
m nd.

SENATOR SEEKI NS sai d no; the borough has had troubl e devel oping a
conprehensive econom c devel opnent plan because of t he
i npedi nents i nposed by the boundari es.

CHAI R GARY STEVENS stated he has letters of support fromboth the
city council and mayor of the City of Fairbanks and the nayor of
the City of North Pole. This addresses his initial concern
regardi ng whether the two cities were in agreenent on the issue.

He asked for a notion to adopt the conmttee substitute (CS)

SENATOR COWDERY made a notion to adopt CSSB 183 \Q version for
di scussi on purposes. There was no objection.

CHAI R GARY STEVENS asked if reference to population was still in
the bill.

SENATOR SEEKINS replied it was not and he wasn't sure what the
difficulty had been.

CHAI R GARY STEVENS noted the current version would affect every
borough and every city in the state, not just Fairbanks.

SENATOR SEEKINS said their intent was to give the three
comunities in the Fairbanks North Star Borough the ability to
wor k t oget her

CHAIR GARY STEVENS asked M. Bockhorst whether he read the
current CS to include all the boroughs in the state or to apply
t o Fairbanks al one.

DAN BOCKHORST, Local Boundary Conm ssion, advised he didn’t have
a copy of the version the commttee was considering. The version
he was readi ng considered the 80,000-population |imt that would
affect only the Fairbanks North Star Borough.

SENATOR SEEKINS explained the \Q version applies only to a
borough that has entered into an agreenent with a city |ocated
within the borough. It doesn’t inpede others; it sinply allows
those cities and boroughs that have an agreenent to cooperate to
do so. This makes it unnecessary to put a popul ation base on to
protect smaller boroughs or cities.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -14- May 8, 2003



CHAI R GARY STEVENS said that neans other boroughs coul d make use
of this if they nmade a cooperative agreenment with cities within
t he borough boundari es.

SENATOR SEEKI NS agr eed.

SENATOR GRETCHEN GUESS asked whether the Kenai Borough could
enter into an agreenent with Soldotna and use the funds in
Sol dotna without other cities within the borough having any input
with regard to the use of the funds.

SENATOR SEEKI NS sai d he thought they coul d.

DAVI D LEONE, special assistant to the North Star Borough mayor,
testified via tel econference in support of the CS \Q version

SENATOR FRED DYSON made a notion to nove CSSB 183(STA) and
attached fiscal not e from commttee W th i ndi vi dua
reconmendati ons. There being no objection, it was so ordered.

#

#SB 211
SB 211- REGULATI ONS: NOTI CE AND DI STRI BUTI ON

CRAIG TILLERY, wth the Departnment of Law, testified via
tel econference. He explained the bill relates to making notices
for proposed regulations nore readable. It is designed to inprove
public notice for changes to regulation and to reduce cost
through elimnation of unnecessary action, the wuse of the
Internet and shortening notice periods. The full sectional
analysis found in the bill file addresses four basic changes:

e Changes the requirenents in the Adm nistrative Procedure
Act for publishing notice

» Mkes notice distribution consistent across agencies

* Newspaper notices may be omtted for certain specialized
subject areas in which Internet notification would be
better suited

e Changes the requirenments for distribution of t he
Adm ni strative Code to | ocal governnment units

CHAIR GARY STEVENS noted the savings aren’'t reflected in the
fiscal note.

MR. TILLERY said there is a revised fiscal note indicating a
$258,000 savings and it’'s possible it wasn't sent to the
comittee.

CHAI R GARY STEVENS confirnmed they hadn’'t received the revised
not e.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -15- May 8, 2003



SENATOR LYMAN HOFFMAN poi nted out that one copy of the AAC should
be made available at no charge to cities that request one. The
state would still realize a savings if copies weren't
automatically sent to all comrunities.

TAPE 03-29, SIDE A
5:05 pm

MR. TILLERY replied there are three ways to get copies. A
comunity could go online and print a copy if Internet access
were available, or a copy could be sent electronically, or a
paper copy could be sent to the community. By naking comrunities
pay for copies they hope to give them the incentive to use the
nost efficient alternative.

SENATOR HOFFMAN said that wasn’'t his question

MR. TILLERY replied he wunderstood the question to ask why
comunities shoul d pay.

SENATOR HOFFMAN restated his question and asked why not mail one
free copy to communities that request one and elimnate the cost
associated wth automatic mailings to all comunities.
Additionally, he disagreed with charging for an electronic
mai | i ng. Charging conmunities for a copy of the code is pronoting
a lack of information and is not a desirable public policy
di rection.

MR. TILLERY replied this approach represents a savings to the
state.

SENATOR HOFFMAN said he represents sonme 70 comunities and this
policy change woul d be a drastic m stake.

ROBERT PI ERSON, Adm ni strative Code coordinator in the Lieutenant
Governor’s Ofice, said they are working toward efficient online
comuni cation. He said it’s the quarterly supplenents that are
sent to communities that they believe are frequently discarded,
which is a waste of state funds. To date they have received no
negati ve comments regarding the change, but they don’t know how
many of the clerks have read their email outlining the change.

The Admi nistrative Code is currently online, but “it’s not quite
perfected yet.” They would like to make inprovenents “so that it
woul d be not necessarily official, but useful for 99 percent of
any kind of consultation you would nornmally take on a day to day
basis with the Adm nistrative Code.” Wen |egal questions arise,
a city clerk would consult a city attorney. They are continuing
to offer the paper copies because there are a few places that
don’t have Internet access.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -16- May 8, 2003



The contract for publishing the Admnistrative Code wll expire
at the end of 2003 and under current |anguage the state would be
required to buy about 170 paper <copies of the quarterly
suppl ements whether they extend the current contract or request
proposals for a new one. They would Ilike the increased
flexibility to have a mx of options to negotiate with the
current publisher and for future contracts.

SENATOR HOFFMAN said if they were really trying to increase
accessibility he couldn’t understand why there would be a charge
for electronic copies. The proposed system would offer no
incentive for noving away from a paper copy if the city was
forced to pay for an electronic copy as well.

CHAI R GARY STEVENS asked for verification that the electronic
copy woul d be available on a CD ROM and not via enail.

MR. Pl ERSON said that was the case. The current cost for the four
quarterly supplenents is $596 per year and he didn’'t know whet her
that woul d burden small communities or not.

CHAI R GARY STEVENS asked what the price would be for a CD ROM

MR. PIERSON said that would be negotiated with the publishers.
Currently there is a CD ROM available that has both the
Adm ni strative Code and the statutes. He pointed out that cities
are now paying for copies of the statutes and he | ooks upon it as
an historical accident that the state is still paying for code
books.

SENATOR HOFFMAN pointed out it isn’'t necessary to put the
information on a CD ROM It could and should be freely avail able
on the Internet.

MARK DAVIS, Director of Banking Securities and Corporations,
testified the bill would inpact his division by allowing for
noti ces regardi ng proposed regulations to be nade in a sinplified
manner. This is consistent in the trend in admnistrative |aw,
whi ch reduces publication costs and uses sinplified notification
nmet hods to reach individuals that are interested in commenting on
proposed regul ati ons.

The proposed change in procedure woul d probably save the division
$7,800 a year and is already being used by the federal governnent
and sone states. Section 26 with regard to securities, and
section 1 with respect to the revised Trust Act would be of
particul ar inpact to his division.

RANDY REUDRICH from the Alaska Gl and Gas Conservation
Conmmi ssion testified via teleconference to advise that the bill

SENATE STA COW TTEE -17- May 8, 2003



woul d save the comm ssion $20,000 a year in publishing costs
Menbers of the industry exclusively attend the conm ssion
neeti ngs and he does not believe that the public notices increase
att endance.

SENATOR CGRETCHEN GUESS asked M. Reudrich to clarify that the
comm ssion neetings weren't held exclusively for industry and
that they weren’t prohibitive of others attending.

MR REUDRICH replied the industry, the nedia, and other
interested parties who mght attend have all given positive
f eedback regarding short term updates avail able electronically.

LI NDA HALL, director of the Division of Insurance, testified that
newspaper publications for public notices have been unsuccessf ul
for the division. She said nobst of the regulations they
promul gate are technical in nature and directed at those they
regulate. The division currently regulates 12,000 registered
i nsurance conpanies and just 11 are domciled in Al aska; they
have 2,500 resident 1licensees and over 12,000 non-resident
| icensees. This translates to only 16 percent of the |icensed
agents and one percent of the insurance conpani es actually having
ready access to newspaper publications. She observed the act
doesn’t prohibit the division from delivering publications when
the matter is in the public interest.

Last year the Division of Insurance spent $9,700 for newspaper
advertising and they estinmate this change woul d save t hem $7, 300.
They would continue to do targeted nailings because they are an
effective way to get information out about upcom ng hearings.

Al t hough she hasn’t been in the director position very |long, she
has attended al nost every Division of Insurance hearing in the
| ast ten years and can attest that they aren’t wi dely attended by
the public, which neans the noney spent on newspaper publications
have not been effective.

CHAI R GARY STEVENS announced he would hold SB 211 in committee.
#

There being no further business to cone before the commttee,
Chair Gary Stevens adjourned the neeting at 5:25 pm

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 18- May 8, 2003



